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http://www.vibrantfutures.oeg
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Phillips County

City of Malta

City of Harlem

http://www.bearpaw.org/
http://www.blackfeetcountry.com/
http://blainecounty-mt.gov/
http://nacdc.org
http://www.browningcdc.org
C:/Users/Andi/OneDrive/Bluetooth Folder
http://chippewacree.org/
tribalnations.mt.gov/chippewacree
http://www.cityofchoteau-mt.gov/
http://www.co.chouteau.mt.us/
http://www.greatfallsmt.net/
ci.havre.mt.us/Welcome%20to%20the
http://www.shelbymt.com/
http://www.hrdc4.org
http://www.hrdc4.org
http://www.ftbelknap.org/
http://www.glaciercountygov.com/
http://hillcounty.us
http://www.co.judith-basin.mt.us/
co.liberty.mt.us/
http://www.msun.edu
http://www.nwgreatfalls.org/
http://www.nwmt.org/
http://www.opportunitylinkmt.org
http://www.ponderacountymontana.org/
http://www.sweetgrassdevelopment.org/
http://www.tetoncomt.org/
http://www.toolecountymt.gov/
http://www,itstriangle.com
http://www.svdpgreatfalls.org/
http://www.cityofharlemmontana.com/
http://www.russellcountry.com
http://www.maltachamber.com/
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Overview Benefits of Planning Planning Principles 

Overview Public Input Regional Resources 

Defining the Region Regional History Regional Connections 

Overview Benefits of a Systems Approach Planning Systems 

Scenario Planning The Process Scenario Descriptions 

Understanding Goals and Strategies Unifying Principles Areas of Focus 

Analysis Technical Assistance 

Regional Connections 

Scenario Indicators 

Intro Organizational Structure Action Items Next Steps Indicator Report Card 
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http://www.census.gov/
opi.mt.gov/
http://www.broadband.mt.gov/
http://www.broadband.mt.gov/
http://www.eia.gov/
http://www.nass.usda.gov/
http://www.nass.usda.gov/
http://www.hud.gov/
http://www.hud.gov/
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http://vibrantfuturesmt.org
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Theme Solution                 

Regional Prosperity Business – Job Growth X X X X X   X X 

Tourism X X X X   X X   

Workforce Training X       X X X X 

Entrepreneurship     X X     X   

Downtown/Main Street X X X           

Broadband/Internet X   X     X X   

Renewable Energy X X X X   X   X 

Oil and Gas       X   X     
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http://www.vibrantfutures.oeg
http://www.vibrantfutures.oeg
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http://www.lib.montana.edu
http://www.lib.montana.edu
http://www.northcentralmontanatransit.org/
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•Housing (costs, supply, condition) 

•Eroding water, sewer, road   

  infrastructure 

•Transportation costs 

•Flood/drought 

•Labor force shortage related to      

  depopulation 

•Attracting young families and young  

  professionals  

•National trends (commodity prices,  

  farm policies, recession, decreased  

  federal spending) 

•Higher education facilities  

•Energy cluster growth 

•Tourism growth 

•Investment in transit 

•Agri-business cluster 

•North Central Montana Regional  

  Water System  

•MSU Northern technical and  

  research programs  

•Brownfield programs  

•Workforce development 
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http://www.lib.montana.edu/
http://nei-yahw.com/preservation.html
http://www.lib.montana.edu/
http://www.archives.gov/
http://www.lib.montana.edu/
http://www.lib.montana.edu/
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/publications/docs/brochures/factbook.pdf
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https://mhs.mt.gov/research/collections/photos
usgwarchives.net/
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RESERVATION 2000 

(USCB) 

2005-2009 

(USCB) 

% 

CHANGE 

Blackfeet $30,741 $33,774 9.9% 

Fort Belknap $26,474 $25,536 -3.5% 

Rocky Boy’s $28,032 $29,934 6.8% 

  COUNTY 
2000 

(USCB) 

2010 

(USCB) 

% 

CHANGE 

Blaine $26,157 $36,562 39.8% 

Cascade $33,819 $42,525 25.7% 

Chouteau $30,054 $38,106 26.8% 

Glacier $27,049 $33,766 24.8% 

Hill $32,043 $42,014 31.1% 

Judith Basin $29,704 $37,657 26.8% 

Liberty $29,505 $35,769 21.2% 

Phillips $29,414 $37,217 26.5% 

Pondera $30,569 $37,218 21.8% 

Teton $31,351 $39,479 25.9% 

Toole $30,785 $38,983 26.6% 

MONTANA 
$33,281 $44,011 32.2% 

 

-

 

 

RESERVATION 
2005-2009 

(ACS) 

Blackfeet 31.4% 

Fort Belknap 37.7% 

Rocky Boy’s 36.9% 

COUNTY 
2006-2010 

(ACS) 

Blaine 29.0% 

Cascade 13.5% 

Chouteau 21.0% 

Glacier 25.4% 

Hill 17.9% 

Judith Basin 9.9% 

Liberty 19.5% 

Phillips 13.5% 

Pondera 21.5% 

Teton 12.8% 

Toole 15.7% 

MONTANA 14.8%* 
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Region 
% of  Private Sec-

tor Jobs for Region 
% of Private Sec-

tor Jobs Statewide 

Higher than State Average       

Health Care and Social Assist. Services 9,213 20.75% 19.37% 

Accommodations – Food Services 6,654 14.99% 13.20% 

Construction 2,278 5.13% 3.05% 

Arts – Entertainment – Recreation 1,705 3.84% 2.84% 

Within 1% of State Average       

Retail Trade 7,312 16.47% 16.68% 

Finance – Insurance – Real Estate 2,697 6.08% 5.65% 

Wholesale Trade 2,258 5.09% 4.42% 

Transportation – Warehouse 1,025 2.31% 3.23% 

Information 889 2.00% 2.78% 

Lower than State Average       

Services (Admin, Education, Health) 4,486 10.11% 12.07% 

Professional-Technical – Management 1,653 3.72% 5.84% 

Manufacturing 1,172 2.64% 4.96% 

Mining 397 0.89% 1.96% 

    
% of Total Jobs for  

Region   

Government (Federal, State, Local) 11,537 20.62% 19.82% 
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http://www.rockyboynorthcentral.com/
http://oldtrailmuseum.org/
https://www.facebook.com/pages/Montana-Dinosaur-Trail/206762272714569
http://www.nwmt.org/
http://www.itstriangle.com/
mtweed.org/
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http://frontierus.org/national-rural-health-association-policy-position-definition-of-frontier/
http://frontierus.org/national-rural-health-association-policy-position-definition-of-frontier/
http://www.census.gov/prod/cen2010/doc/pl94-171.pdf
http://plainshumanities.unl.edu/encyclopedia/doc/egp.ag.027
http://plainshumanities.unl.edu/encyclopedia/doc/egp.ag.027
http://www.bea.gov/regional/bearfacts/pdf.cfm?fips=30000&area&geo
http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/30000.html
http://www.census.gov/acs/www/
http://www.census.gov/acs/www/
http://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3993997/
http://www.ihs.gov/MedicalPrograms/Diabetes/HomeDocs/Resources/FactSheets/2012/Fact_sheet_AIAN_508c.pdf
http://billingsgazette.com/special-section/montana-economy/things-are-looking-up-in-for-great-falls-economy/article_2856921a-4d48-534c-88d8-c8c9461a6e6f.html
http://billingsgazette.com/special-section/montana-economy/things-are-looking-up-in-for-great-falls-economy/article_2856921a-4d48-534c-88d8-c8c9461a6e6f.html
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http://www.sweetgrassdevelopment.org
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http://deq.mt.gov/energy/renewable/default.mcpx
http://www.doleta.gov/tradeact/pdf/MT.pdf
http://www.doleta.gov/tradeact/pdf/MT.pdf
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Affordable and 

Quality Housing 

Access to 

Services and 

Amenities 

Transportation 

Choices 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

-  

Prepared by Opportunity Link, 2013 

https://www.livingcities.org/
commissionhealth.org
http://www.cdc.gov/
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http://lsccs.com/projects/opportunitylink/final.htm
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https://www.fema.gov/national-flood-insurance-program-community-rating-system
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More green space = Less run-off = Less non-
point pollution = Better water quality 

 Wetlands/open space = Flood control 

Open space  = Protection of recharge areas for 
drinking water 

Stormwater control = Less non-point    pollu-
tion = Lower water treatment costs 

Green space = Less run-off = Lower costs for 
stormwater control facilities 
 

Stormwater control = Less sewer pipe  
infiltration = Lower wastewater treatment cost 

 

 

Recycle effluent to irrigate open space =  
Natural filtration = Lower treatment cost 

 

Design septic systems to protect aquifer =  
Lower water treatment costs 
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http://www.rockyboynorthcentral.com
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http://www.deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/swp/default.mcpxhttp:/www.deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/swp/default.mcpx
http://deq.mt.gov/ClimateChange/default.mcpx
http://drought.mt.gov/committee/
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Figure 6.1: Relationship between Issues, Goals, Strategies, and Implementation 

Source: Opportunity Link, 2014 
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Community Vitality 

Regional Prosperity 

 Job and Business Growth 

 Tourism 

 Workforce 

 Main Street 

 Broadband 

 Energy 

 Housing 

 Culture and Heritage 

 Community Character 

 Parks and Civic Spaces 

 Commercial Services 

 Healthy Neighborhoods 

Physical Systems 

 Roads 

 Transit 

 Drinking Water 

 Wastewater 

 Sidewalks and Trails 

Social Systems 

 Education 

 Health Care 

 Aging Services 

 Youth Services 

 Wellness 

 Government Services 

Natural Assets 

 Water Quality 

 Sustainable Agriculture 

 Land Stewardship 

 Land Use Patterns 
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http://www.census.gov/econ/cbp/
http://www.doleta.gov/performance/results/AnnualReports/PY2012/Economic%20Impact%20Analysis.pdf
http://www.tourismresearchmt.org/
http://www.ourfactsyourfuture.org
http://www.ourfactsyourfuture.org
http://www.bls.gov/eag/eag.mt.htm
http://mtmainstreet.mt.gov
http://www.broadband.mt.govDocumentsRegPlanningFinalReport
http://www.broadband.mt.govDocumentsRegPlanningFinalReport
http://housing.mt.gov/Portals/93/shared/docs/HousingDivision/WhitePaper/2012WhitePaper.pdf
http://housing.mt.gov/Portals/93/shared/docs/HousingDivision/WhitePaper/2012WhitePaper.pdf
http://www.census.gov/people/disability/
http://www.dphhs.mt.gov/
http://www.nps.gov/nr/research/
http://www.greatfallsmt.net/sites/default/files/fileattachments/growth_policy_update_-_august_6_2013.pdf
https://www.planning.org/cityparks/briefingpapers/pdf/economicdevelopment.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/su6203a4.htm?s_cid=su6203a4_w
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/su6203a4.htm?s_cid=su6203a4_w
http://sdwisdww.mt.gov:8080/DWW/
http://www.vibrantfuturesmt.org/sites/default/files/user/documents/WaterSystemReports.pdf
http://www.vibrantfuturesmt.org/sites/default/files/user/documents/WaterSystemReports.pdf
http://www.deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/srf/WPCSRF/default.mcpx
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/other/research/external/docs/research_proj/benchmarks/final_report_apr12.pdf
http://www.vibrantfuturesmt.org/sites/default/files/user/documents/Reasons%20for%20Riding%20Public%20Transportation%20in%20Rural%20and%20Frontier%20Montana.pdf
http://www.vibrantfuturesmt.org/sites/default/files/user/documents/Reasons%20for%20Riding%20Public%20Transportation%20in%20Rural%20and%20Frontier%20Montana.pdf
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/publications/docs/brochures/factbook.pdf
opi.mt.gov/pdf/Measurement/14EnrollmentHistory.pdf
opi.mt.gov/pdf/Measurement/14EnrollmentHistory.pdf
http://www.dphhs.mt.gov/Portals/85/publichealth/documents/Epidemiology/CHD/Region2Community
http://dphhs.mt.gov/SLTC/aging/agingreports
http://dphhs.mt.gov/SLTC/aging/agingreports
http://www.opi.mt.gov/pdf/YRBS/13/13FinalRpt.pdf
http://www.opi.mt.gov/pdf/YRBS/13/13FinalRpt.pdf
http://www.cchdmt.org/UserFiles/File/2013CCComm
http://www.cchdmt.org/UserFiles/File/2013CCComm
http://mbcc.mt.gov/PlanProj/Pubs/1213MBCCBienniel
http://www.cchdmt.org/UserFiles/File/2013CCComm
http://www.cchdmt.org/UserFiles/File/2013CCComm
http://deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/cwaic/reports.mcpx
http://deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/cwaic/reports.mcpx
http://www.deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/nonpoint/nonpoint
http://www.deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/nonpoint/nonpoint
http://www.mtwatersheds.org/resources/watersheds/
http://www.agcensus.usda.gov/Publications/2012/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_2_County_Level/Montana/
http://letsmitigatemontana.com/wp-content/uploads/2012/10/Section-4.4.2_Flooding_final.pdf
http://www.deq.mt.gov/brownfields/default.mcpx
http://www.mtwatersheds.org/
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“There is community awareness, but taking action is 

key to helping the community thrive.” 

Source:  Vibrant Futures Survey Comment 
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Develop community broadband model    

Create a model for community broadband plans that 
includes local strategies. Organize a regional tech-
nology/broadband summit to provide education on 
the model and share best practices with a focus on 
employment/job creation and telework opportuni-
ties, virtual offices, and applications for telehealth 
and e-government. This action was estimated high in 
regional impact, high in need, and moderately easy 
to implement. 

 
 
Strategies:   1.6, 1.9, 4.2, 4.6 
 
Timeframe:  Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:  Telecom/broadband providers, Job 
Service, economic development agencies 
 
Resources:  Broadband providers 

Action Item 1:    

Develop bicycle tourism  

Promote bicycle tourism in the region.  Research 
other regional efforts that promote bicycle tourism 
and document the economic benefits as well as the 
needs of bicycle tourists. Assess the assets of 
communities to meet those needs and identify infra-
structure gaps. Develop and map designated routes 
with trails, various area activities, and community 
features such as downtown landmarks. Research 
connections with Amtrak and work with local busi-
nesses to cater to bicycle tourists. This action was 
estimated moderate in need and impact and easy to 
implement.  

 
Strategies:  1.3, 1.5, 1.9 
 
Timeframe:   Ongoing  
 
Stakeholders:  Chambers of Commerce, Montana 
Department of Transportation, Local Government, 
MT Tourism offices, Parks and Recreation, MT Fish 
Wildlife and Parks, Bike Walk Montana, Adventure 
Cycling Association, Western Transportation Institute 
 
Resources:  MT Fish Wildlife and Parks, Recreational 
Trails Program, MT Office of Tourism, Tourism 
Infrastructure Investment Program (TIIP), National 
Endowment for the Arts 

Action Item 2:    

 

-

 

fwp.mt.gov/
stateparks.mt.gov/recreation/recTrailsProgram.html
stateparks.mt.gov/recreation/recTrailsProgram.html
tourism.mt.gov/
tourism.mt.gov/
tourism.mt.gov/
arts.gov/
arts.gov/
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Establish business incubators in tribal 
communities    

Identify communities with highest unemployment 
rates and provide basic services to support regional 
growth.  Investigate other tribal models for business 
development. Conduct needs assessment to deter-
mine “basic services” in community to support 
project.  Build capital and identify land.   Include 
educational component such as job-training, entre-
preneurial training, and peer-to-peer exchange. 
Provide marketing assistance.  This action was high 
for regional impact, high need, and moderately 
difficult to implement.  

 
Strategies:   1.1, 1.2, 1.9 
 
Timeframe:   Long-term, ongoing   
 
Stakeholders:   Tribal government, tribal colleges, 
tribal development corporations, business partners, 
local economic development group 
 
Resources:  Administration for Native Americans 
(ANA), Social and Economic Development Strategies 
(SEDS) grant, Rural Business Enterprise Grant 
(RBEG), Rural Business Opportunity Grant (RBOG), 
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) 
Rural Development, Indian Country Economic  
Development (ICED) and State Tribal Economic 
Development, program-related investments, Kellogg 
Foundation, Shakopee Tribe 

Action Item 3:    Action Item 4:    

Seek grant funding for small businesses to 
increase equity assets so they can use such 
assets to leverage private financing 

Create a framework to distribute grant funds and to 
provide small business support. Funds would target 
businesses in rural and tribal communities. A possi-
ble funder would be Department of Commerce. This 
was estimated moderately high for impact and 
need, and moderately easy to implement.    

 
Strategies:   1.2, 1.9 
 
Timeframe:   Short-term, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:  MT Department of Commerce, Small 
Business Administration, local and regional 
economic development agencies, Bureau of Indian 
Affairs (BIA)    
 
Resources:   State and federal funding to initiate 
program and loan payments from small business  
revolving loan fund program, Community 
Development Financial Institutions (CDFIs), Indian 
Community Economic Development (ICED), program
-related investments from foundations, donations  

http://www.acf.hhs.gov/programs/ana
http://www.acf.hhs.gov/programs/ana/programs/seds
http://www.usda.gov/wps/portal/usda/usdahome?contentid=kyf_grants_rd6_content.html
http://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/rural-business-development-grants
http://www.usda.gov/wps/portal/usda/usdahome?contentid=kyf_grants_rd6_content.html
iced.mt.gov/
iced.mt.gov/
tribal.mt.gov/
tribal.mt.gov/
https://www.wkkf.org/
https://www.wkkf.org/
http://www.shakopeedakota.org/
iced.mt.gov/
iced.mt.gov/
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Promote community-driven neighborhood 
projects as best practice models  

Identify neighborhood or downtown improvement 
projects that use state of the art construction tech-
niques with energy efficient/renewable technologies. 
Incorporate environmental designs such as 
playgrounds that use the natural terrain.  Identify 
skills for project construction and work with higher 
education institutions and workforce training to 
develop programs for these job skills. Work through 
community housing organizations and local govern-
ments to identify needed projects. Completed 
projects can be models of best practices for other 
neighborhoods. This action was ranked high for 
impact and need, and moderately easy to 
implement. 

 
Strategies:  1.2, 1.4, 1.5, 1.7, 4.6 
 
Timeframe: Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:  Local governments, local housing 
agencies, colleges, workforce training offices, 
Chambers of Commerce, Rural Energy for America 
Program (REAP), neighborhood groups 
 
Resources:  Community Development Block Grants, 
communities, philanthropic organizations 

Promote regional tourist attractions to 
encourage longer stays in the region 

Identify specialty trails that connect attractions in the 
region such as the Dinosaur Trail or Grandeur of the 
Rockies. Inventory the region’s “points-of-interest” 
and develop marketing materials to generate 
interest. Promote rural communities’ downtown 
businesses and local festivals. Coordinate with hotels 
and communities to establish a campaign to “stay 
one more night” to visit such attractions. Provide 
technical assistance to travel-related businesses to 
have them help promote travel and shopping at local 
businesses within the region. This was estimated as 
having moderate need and impact and being 
moderately easy to implement. 

 
Strategies:   1.3, 2.6 
 
Timeframe:  Short-term, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:   Tourism businesses, Chambers of 
Commerce, MT Office of Tourism, museums, 
outfitters, recreation associations, visitor bureaus, 
Department of Commerce 
 
Resources:  MT Office of Tourism grants, lodging 
tax, regional tourism office, and visitor bureaus 

Action Item 5:    Action Item 6:    

 

http://www.hud.gov/cdbg
tourism.mt.gov/
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Create a telework clearinghouse 

Provide online database for telework opportunities. 
Work with MT Dept. of Labor Job Service postings to 
include a category specific to telework. Work with 
regional businesses to identify opportunities for 
telework and how to implement programs for their 
companies. Encourage local communities to incor-
porate strategies for telework in their CEDS and 
growth policies. This action was estimated moderate 
in impact and need and moderately easy to 
implement.  

 
Strategies:   1.6, 1.9 
 
Timeframe:  Ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:   Job service, telecommunication 
providers, Main Street Montana  Project, MT 
Department of Labor, local economic development 
agencies, private sector 
 
Resources:   Funding from Department of Labor 
(DOL), Economic Development Administration (EDA), 
state and federal agencies  

Action Item 7:    Action Item 8:    

Implement a “Return to Rural” campaign 

Seek examples from other regions that have attract-
ed young adults to return to rural communities. 
Develop a model plan that would include a curricu-
lum/outline for communities to institute a “return 
to rural” program. Include entrepreneurial training 
and networking opportunities. Recruit local busi-
nesses to attract young adults and families. This 
action was estimated moderate in impact and need 
and moderately easy to implement. 

 
Strategies:   1.2, 1.9 
 
Timeframe:   Ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:   Chambers of Commerce, Farmers 
Union, local development organizations, economic 
development agencies 
 
Resources:  Heartland Leadership Institute, local 
sponsors, regional and state agencies  

http://www.dol.gov
http://www.eda.gov
heartlandcenter.info/
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Train the workforce in jobs related to 
energy efficiency 

Create partnerships to train workforce to retrofit 
older housing stock and public facilities with energy 
efficient improvements. Coordinate with housing 
agencies to promote programs for homeowners to 
undertake energy efficient improvements. This 
program can be instituted region-wide including 
urban areas, rural communities, and tribal communi-
ties. It would reduce energy costs for residents and 
public agencies; it would improve workforce skills in 
construction trades; and, it would create jobs in the 
construction industry.  It has the added benefits of 
extending the life of older homes and encouraging 
other investments in home upgrades, thereby 
improving the tax base. Public agencies would be 
able to save on energy costs. This action has the 
potential to be a catalytic project because it 
promotes strategies in multiple areas of focus. It was 
estimated moderately high for impact and need and 
moderately easy to implement.   

 
Strategies:   1.4, 1.7, 1.9, 2.3, 2.4, 3.6, 4.6  
 
Timeframe:   Short-term, identify partners;  mid-
term, secure funding and implement 
 
Stakeholders:   Homeowners, vocational education 
programs, utilities, contractor trades, job service 
 
Resources:  Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG), HOME Investment Partnerships Program, MT 
Department of Public Health and Human Services 
(DPHHS), Economic Development Administration 
(EDA), Department of Energy (DOE), utility 
companies, Energy Corps, building supply stores  

Action Item 9:    

 

 

 

http://www.hud.gov/cdbg
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/affordablehousing/programs/home/
dphhs.mt.gov/
dphhs.mt.gov/
http://www.eda.gov
http://www.energy.gov/
energycorps.ncat.org/
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Advocate for a Housing Montana Fund 

Lobby state legislature to fund expanded housing 
programs that serve rural and urban areas. Urge 
state agencies to create a funding mechanism for 
multi-county applications.   Support construction of 
rental units, workforce housing, senior housing, 
home ownership, and housing rehab.  Seek commit-
ments from local leaders and housing agencies to 
provide information in support of the measure.  This 
action was estimated high in impact and need and 
moderately difficult to implement.   

 
Strategies:   2.1, 2.3 
 
Timeframe:  Underway, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:  Housing agencies, local leadership, 
economic development agencies 
 
Resources:  Montana Coalition for Housing and 
Infrastructure, Montana Department of Commerce  
Housing Division 

Action Item 10:    Action Item 11:    

Sponsor a “Community Clean-Up” program 

Sponsor a “Community Clean-Up” program to 
remove blight and dilapidated buildings. Task each 
community to identify neighborhoods where there 
is need for blight removal. Investigate programs 
such as the federal brownfield programs, state junk 
vehicle program, and CDBG funds.   Inventory best 
practices from other regions and states and share 
information with rural towns. Encourage commu-
nities to include blight removal strategies in growth 
policies to support community revitalization. This 
action was estimated moderately high impact and 
need and easy to implement.  

 
Strategies:   2.7, 5.7 
 
Timeframe:  Ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:   Local and Tribal governments, 
housing agencies, property owners, economic 
development districts 
 
Resources:   Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA), Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), state 
and federal programs, code enforcement agencies 

 

http://www.mtchi.org/
http://www.mtchi.org/
housing.mt.gov/
housing.mt.gov/
http://www.epa.gov/
deq.mt.gov
http://www.hud.gov/cdbg


87 

Complete a Housing Needs Assessment  

Create baseline housing needs assessment to deter-
mine existing inventory and demand for more units. 
Document the need for rural subsidized housing, 
assisted living, rental units and adaptive living 
options for seniors and persons with disabilities.  
Identify options for meeting needs such as working 
with builders to construct more units for seniors, 
educating landlords about rehab of existing units, 
and incorporating adaptive living features in new 
housing units or rehabs.   Accurate, timely data will 
support housing agencies to create affordable, subsi-
dized units and inform local growth policies. This 
action was estimated high in impact and need and 
easy to implement.  
 
Consider a joint application for a planning grant to 
conduct a multi-county needs assessment.   
 
Strategies:   2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4 
 
Timeframe:  Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:  Landlords, civic associations, local 
and tribal governments, planning boards, 
developers, housing agencies 
 
Resources:   Local match, Community Development 
Block Grant Planning Funds, Big Sky Trust Fund, 
USDA Rural Housing Programs, Montana Department 
of Commerce Housing Division, CAP Coalition 
 
 

Increase regional Fair Housing outreach and 
education 

Create a Fair Housing outreach and education cam-
paign to reduce impediments to fair access.  Build on 
regional Fair Housing Equity Assessment (FHEA) to 
target areas with discrimination concerns or com-
plaints.   Coordinate with Montana Fair Housing and 
the MT Department of Commerce Housing Division 
to identify existing programs and gaps. Develop Fair 
Housing training for lenders and realtors. Encourage 
communities to include Fair Housing goals and 
objectives in their local growth policies. This action 
was estimated as high in impact and need and mod-
erately easy to implement.  
 
Strategies:   2.1, 2.4 
 
Timeframe:   Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:  Renters, homebuyers, landlords, 
lenders, realtors, property managers, housing 
agencies, local governments 
 
Resources:  Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD), Montana Department of 
Commerce Housing Division, Montana Fair Housing, 
nonprofit housing agencies   

Action Item 12:    Action Item 13:    

 

http://www.hud.gov/cdbg
http://www.hud.gov/cdbg
bstf.mt.gov/
http://www.rd.usda.gov/about-rd/agencies/rural-housing-service
housing.mt.gov/
housing.mt.gov/
http://www.communityactionpartnership.com/
http://www.hud.gov
http://www.hud.gov
housing.mt.gov
housing.mt.gov
http://www.montanafairhousing.org/
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Form cooperatives for local commercial 
services 

Work with the Montana Cooperative Development 
Center (MCDC) to offer training to local communities 
and entrepreneurs to develop cooperatives that 
could provide commercial services to rural towns.    
Cooperatives are a form of business that is non-
profit, user-owned, and user-controlled.  Provide 
basic services, such as fresh foods, retail shopping, 
banking, and other needs, to make small towns 
more desirable places to live and to reduce driving. 
This action was estimated as moderate in impact 
and need and moderately easy to implement.   

 
Strategies:   2.5, 2.8, 5.5  
 
Timeframe:   Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:    Local leaders, investors 
 
Resources: Montana Cooperative Development 
Center  
  

Action Item 14:    Action Item 15:    

Develop homeownership programs on 
reservations 

Create homeownership programs through tribal 
housing authorities to improve home ownership 
options for moderate income households. Look at 
model programs on other reservations. Gain 
approval of tribal councils. Attend housing coalition 
training to help housing authorities build capacity 
and access new funds. Work with regional agencies 
to access technical assistance for this and other 
housing programs. This action was estimated as 
moderate in impact and need and moderately 
difficult to implement.      

 
Strategies:   2.1, 2.2 
 
Timeframe:   Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:    Tribal housing authorities, tribal 
councils, homebuyers 
 
Resources:   Tribal Housing Authority, state and 
federal programs, North West Montana Housing 
Coalition, Montana-Wyoming Indian Housing 
Coalition, Opportunity Link, Federal Reserve Bank, 
Native American Development Corporation (NADC), 
NeighborWorks Montana 

http://www.mcdc.coop/
http://www.mcdc.coop/
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/public_indian_housing/ih/codetalk/tribalhousing
http://www.opportunitylinkmt.org
http://www.federalreserve.gov
http://www.nadc-nabn.org/
http://www.nwmt.org/
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Boost downtown revitalization  

Conduct downtown expo for rural communities to 
identify funding sources for downtown plans, design 
guidelines, and revitalization projects. Have repre-
sentatives from state and federal agencies conduct 
training and provide technical assistance on grant 
applications. Bring marketing professionals to work 
with communities on branding and promotion. Plan-
ning professionals can review growth policies and 
recommend downtown strategies.   Downtown revi-
talization projects attract visitors, increase tourism, 
and improve tax base. This action was estimated high 
for need, moderate in impact, and easy to 
implement.   

 
Strategies:   1.5, 2.6, 2.7, 5.8 
 
Timeframe:  Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:  Local government, Chambers of 
Commerce, downtown businesses  
 
Resources:   Montana Main Street Program, 
Montana Office of Tourism, State Historic 
Preservation Office, Community Development Block 
Grants (CDBG), Economic Development 
Administration (EDA), Big Sky Trust Funds, Historic 
Preservation Tax Credits, private sector investments, 
tax increment finance districts  

Map parks, recreation, and trails to create a 
regional “wayfinding” path 

Use GIS mapping to inventory trails, parks, historic 
sites, and amenities throughout the region.  Coor-
dinate with local trail projects. Mapping would 
provide a basis for planning a regional trail system 
and creating informational signage. Regional trail 
maps could be marketed to adventure cyclists and 
tourists. This action could have catalytic impact 
because it promotes strategies in multiple areas of 
focus on a region-wide scale. This action was esti-
mated as moderate in impact and easy to imple-
ment.  

 
Strategies:   1.3, 2.6, 2.9, 3.4, 4.5 
 
Timeframe:  Long-term 
 
Stakeholders:  Local government, park and 
recreation departments, tourism officials, local 
businesses, recreationists, public health 
 
Resources:   Montana Tourism Infrastructure 
Investment Program (TIIP), Fish Wildlife and Parks 
Recreational Trails Program, private sector 
contributions, Montana Department of 
Transportation Community Transportation 
Enhancement Program (CTEP) funds, Montana Land 
Information Act (MLIA) grants for GIS, private 
foundation grants  

Action Item 16:    Action Item 17:    

 

mtmainstreet.mt.gov/
tourism.mt.gov/
https://mhs.mt.gov/Shpo
https://mhs.mt.gov/Shpo
http://www.hud.gov/cdbg
http://www.hud.gov/cdbg
http://www.eda.gov
http://www.eda.gov
bstf.mt.gov
tourism.mt.gov/
tourism.mt.gov/
stateparks.mt.gov/recreation/rtpGrants.html
stateparks.mt.gov/recreation/rtpGrants.html
mdt.mt.gov/business/ctep/
mdt.mt.gov/business/ctep/
mdt.mt.gov/business/ctep/
http://about.msl.mt.gov/commission_councils/mliac/montana_land_information_advisory_council
http://about.msl.mt.gov/commission_councils/mliac/montana_land_information_advisory_council
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Coordinate transportation planning and 
funding efforts to improve road networks 

Encourage municipal, county, and tribal officials to 
participate in MDT Transportation Coordinating 
Committees in non-metro areas to identify road 
projects that promote safety, connectivity, and 
context-sensitive design. Encourage localities to 
amend growth policies to include goals and objec-
tives that support such projects, with funding 
mechanisms that ensure new developments pay 
proportional shares of transportation improve-
ments. This action was estimated as moderately 
easy to implement. 

 

Strategies:   3.1, 3.4, 3.5 
 
Timeframe:   Ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:   Local elected officials, public works 
departments, county road departments, transit 
agencies, Montana Department of Transportation 
(MDT), local planners 
 
Resources:  MDT, local transportation coordinating 
committees, Montana Association of Planners 

Action Item 18:    Action Item 19:    

Improve coordination between local transit 
services 

Coordinate local transit systems for activities such as 
scheduling, interconnection opportunities, and 
planning. Joint planning will identify potential 
expansion of transit services to provide alternative 
modes of travel and address needs of seniors, 
people with disabilities, and non-drivers. Coordi-
nating among transit providers and employers could 
help address workforce needs in the region. Joint 
purchasing could result in cost efficiencies.   
Encourage localities to include goals. This action was 
estimated as moderate in need and impact and 
moderately difficult to implement.  

 
Strategies:   1.8, 3.2, 3.3, 4.2, 4.6  
 
Timeframe:   Short-term, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders: Community members, local transit 
systems, MDT, agencies serving senior and disabled 
populations, local governments 
 
Resources:   MDT, U.S. Department of Transporta-
tion, Area Agencies on Aging, private employers 

http://www.mdt.mt.gov/
http://www.montanaplanners.org/
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/
http://www.dot.gov
http://www.dot.gov
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Expand local transit services 

Expand transit services by identifying opportunities 
to expand routes, add new stops, and make 
interconnections between different transit services.   
Identify new funding streams and partners to 
support new services. Conduct needs analysis to 
determine demand for and feasibility of new 
services.   An area that was identified for potential 
expansion was in west Hill County to provide services 
to Inverness, Rudyard, and Hingham and possibly 
Liberty County residents.    Liberty County Transit 
was identified as a potential lead for this action.  This 
action item was estimated as moderately high in 
need and impact and moderately easy to implement.  

 
Strategies:    3.2, 3.3, 4.2, 4.6  
 
Timeframe:   Short-term, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders: Community members, local transit 
systems, Montana Department of Transportation 
(MDT), agencies serving senior and disabled 
populations, local governments 
 
Resources:   MDT, U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Liberty County Transit  

Support local sidewalk improvements 

Adopt design standards to promote streets, side-
walks, and trails that accommodate people with 
mobility difficulties (such as seniors/disabled) and 
provide safe walking routes to schools and other 
community destinations. Inventory sidewalk network 
to identify potential improvements. Encourage 
localities to amend growth policies to include goals 
and objectives that support sidewalk efforts.   
Coordinate sidewalk improvements with road 
construction projects. This action was estimated as 
moderate in need and impact and moderately easy 
to implement. 

 

Strategies:   3.2, 3.4, 3.5, 4.7, 5.8 
 
Timeframe:  Short-term, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:  Local governments, planners, public 
works, road departments, schools, MDT 
 
Resources:  MDT Community Transportation 
Enhancement Program (CTEP) program, fuel tax 
funds, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
- Public Facilities, tax increment finance funds, public 
health grants 

Action Item 20:    Action Item 21:    

 

http://www.mdt.mt.gov/
http://www.dot.gov
http://www.dot.gov
http://www.libertytransit.org/
mdt.mt.gov/business/ctep/
mdt.mt.gov/business/ctep/
http://www.hud.gov/cdbg
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Expand local trail systems 

Develop plans to expand trail systems that promote 
fitness and provide convenient walking access to 
parks, shopping, and other services. Work with 
schools and health care officials to identify best 
routes and potential funding sources. Include trail 
improvements in new residential developments. 
Encourage localities to include goals, objectives, and 
maps for local trails in growth policies.  Identify civic 
groups and volunteers who can donate labor and 
supplies for trail building.  Coordinate region-wide 
trail planning.  This action was estimated as moder-
ately high in need,  moderate in impact, and 
moderately easy to implement.   

 
Strategies:   3.2, 3.3, 3.5, 4.5, 4.7, 5.8 
 
Timeframe:    Short-term, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:   Local government officials, planners, 
public works, road departments, park and recreation 
departments, schools, public health officials, 
recreation groups 
 
Resources:  Montana Department of 
Transportation (MDT) Community Transportation 
Enhancement Program (CTEP), Fish Wildlife and 
Parks Recreational Trails Program, U.S. Department 
of Transportation TIGER Grants, local fundraising 
and donations, park mill levy, tax increment finance 
funds, parkland dedication funds, public health 
grants  

Action Item 22:    Action Item 23:    

Provide training for rural water and 
wastewater systems 

Conduct training for rural water and wastewater 
systems to assist adaptation of innovative, cost-
effective practices; upgrades to accommodate 
growth; and improvements to water quality.    
Potential topics may include:  

 Projecting future needs for water and 
wastewater systems 

 Achieving cost efficiencies by integrative design 
between drinking water, wastewater, and 
stormwater systems 

 Incorporating concepts that  complement 
natural systems 

 Developing innovative partnerships and 
financing techniques 

 Managing aqua tank collection, containment, 
and treatment 

This action was estimated high in need and impact.  

 
Strategies:    3.6, 3.7, 3.8, 5.3, 5.6 
 
Timeframe:   Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:  Rural water districts, rural 
wastewater systems, public works staff, planners, 
local officials, community members 
 
Resources:  Local district training funds, grants, 
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), 
Montana Rural Water Association, Montana State 
University-Northern, Opportunity Link, Partnership 
for Sustainable Communities 

http://www.mdt.mt.gov/
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/
mdt.mt.gov/business/ctep/
mdt.mt.gov/business/ctep/
stateparks.mt.gov/recreation/rtpGrants.html
http://www.dot.gov
http://www.dot.gov
http://www.dot.gov/tiger
deq.mt.gov
http://www.mrws.org
http://www.msun.edu
http://www.msun.edu
http://www.opportunitylinkmt.org
http://www.sustainablecommunities.gov/
http://www.sustainablecommunities.gov/
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Improve infrastructure for emergency 
situations and response 

Ensure that critical infrastructure is adequate for 
emergency situations and to build resilient commu-
nities. Review municipal, county, and tribal disaster 
preparedness plans.  Work with local governments to 
update plans as needed. Identify needs for critical 
infrastructure in the region and seek opportunities 
for multi-jurisdictional collaboration to address 
infrastructure needs. Facilitate discussions to devel-
op joint projects and identify potential funding 
mechanisms. This action was estimated as moder-
ately easy to implement.   

 
Strategies:   3.1, 3.10 
 
Timeframe:  Underway, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:   County departments of emergency 
services, public safety officials, rural fire districts, 
local government officials,  public works and road 
departments, flood plain managers, planners 
 
Resources:   Federal Emergency Management 
Association (FEMA), Montana Department of 
Transportation (MDT), Montana Department of 
Natural Resources and Conservation (DNRC) 

Create “Information Clearinghouse” with 
community mapping to facilitate planning 
for infrastructure  

Compile information on cost-benefit models, fiscal 
impact models, asset management, and other 
resources to help communities plan for future infra-
structure needs. Develop interactive web site with 
community-based maps to indicate location of model 
projects in the region, and to allow communities to 
post questions and share information about 
innovative practices. Sharing information will allow 
local and state officials to take a regional perspec-
tive.  This action was estimated moderately high in 
impact and need and was considered moderately 
easy to implement.  

 
Strategies:  3.8, 3.6, 3.7, 3.8, 3.9, 3.10  
 
Timeframe:   Short-term, ongoing  
 
Stakeholders:   Local and tribal governments, water 
districts, wastewater system operators, public works 
departments, planning departments 
 
Resources:   Opportunity Link, Montana Land 
Information Act grants, GIS Departments  

Action Item 24:    Action Item 25:    

 

https://www.fema.gov/
https://www.fema.gov/
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/
dnrc.mt.gov/
dnrc.mt.gov/
http://www.opportunitylinkmt.org
http://about.msl.mt.gov/commission_councils/mliac/montana_land_information_advisory_council
http://about.msl.mt.gov/commission_councils/mliac/montana_land_information_advisory_council
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Establish apprenticeship programs 

Establish apprenticeship paths at the high school 
level to connect with university systems and provide 
more youth opportunities while building a skilled 
workforce. Develop technical programs to match 
industry needs (e.g. welding, mechanics, CNA). Work 
with higher education systems to embed pathways 
from high schools to community colleges. Create 
strong partnerships between programs and industry 
to develop graduate employment opportunities. 
Seek legislative funding.  This action was estimated 
high in need and impact but difficult to implement.    

 
Strategies:  1.4, 4.1, 4.4, 4.6 
 
Timeframe:   Underway, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:  State Department of Labor, school 
districts, higher education, unions, industry, 
economic development agencies, Job Service, 
workforce training partners 
 
Resources:  U.S. Department of Labor, MT 
Department of Labor and Industry, legislature, 
private industry, Montana State University-Northern 

Action Item 26:    Action Item 27:    

Complete local Community Health Needs 
Assessments 

Conduct regional analysis of local community health 
needs assessments to identify potential collab-
oration on mutually identified health needs. Com-
bine survey data from all regional hospitals to 
obtain regional health profile; identify common-
alities and differences to help health providers tailor 
services to community needs.  Coordinate assess-
ments with regional hospitals to comply with the 
requirements of the Affordable Care Act and 
provide an ongoing framework for coordinating 
health care needs. This was estimated high in need 
and impact and moderately easy to implement. 

 
Strategies:   4.2, 4.3, 4.5, 4.6 
 
Timeframe:  Short-term, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:  Hospitals, Montana Office of Rural 
Health, MT Department of Public Health and Human 
Services, health care clinics 
 
Resources:  Montana Office of Rural Health is 
potential lead agency 

http://www.dol.gov/
dli.mt.gov/
dli.mt.gov/
http://www.msun.edu
healthinfo.montana.edu/
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Develop tele-health presentations  

Offer tele-health presentations in rural areas and 
Indian reservations to increase access to health edu-
cation and health care for professionals and commu-
nity members. Coordinate tele-health connections 
among reservations and/or towns. Identify present-
ers and health care providers to provide workshops. 
Coordinate with public health officials to identify 
issues and develop training. Evaluate workshops and 
classes to improve future offerings. This action item 
was estimated as moderate in need and impact and 
moderately easy to implement.   

 
Strategies:   4.2, 4.5 
 
Timeframe:  Underway, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:  Healthcare providers, tribal staff, 
tribal community members, patients   
 
Resources:  Benefis Hospital is a potential lead.   
Healthcare providers in region, Indian Health Service, 
MT Department of Public Health and Human 
Services, county public health departments, state 
and federal grants 

Create regional leadership institute 

Help communities recruit and train future leaders 
through a leadership institute that encourages part-
nerships and innovative practices for providing local 
services to rural communities. Solicit input from 
communities on high-demand topics; develop train-
ing to meet the unique needs of the region. Include 
management skills useful in both public/private 
sectors. Identify community projects to promote 
cultural heritage and strengthen bonds to commu-
nity. Conduct outreach to people in existing leader-
ship positions and also to young and future leaders. 
Evaluate effectiveness and determine interest in 
future trainings. This action item was estimated as 
moderate in need and easy to implement.  It has the 
potential to have a catalytic impact due to regional 
implementation and benefits in multiple areas of 
focus. 

 
Strategies:   1.2, 2.6, 4.6  
 
Timeframe:  Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:   Local governments, Chambers of 
Commerce, non-profit agencies, educational 
institutions, professional organizations 
 
Resources:  Opportunity Link, private foundations 
for funding  

Action Item 28:    Action Item 29:    
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Appoint community equity task force 

Appoint task force of citizens and leaders to review, 
identify, and make plans to address regional social 
disparities. The task force should have broad repre-
sentation from social service providers, public offi-
cials, low-income households, and segments of the 
population in need of services. The task force will 
define its mission, review existing data, and identify 
priority community concerns. The group will brain-
storm ideas and develop a roadmap of action for the 
local community.  Plans can be coordinated among 
multiple cooperating communities.  This action item 
was estimated as moderate in need and impact and 
easy to implement.   

 
Strategies:   4.1 through 4.8 
 
Timeframe:   Short-term 

 
Stakeholders:   Community leaders, human 
resource agencies, non-profits, low-income 
households, seniors, youths, families, education, law 
enforcement, people with disabilities 
 
Resources:  Public agency funding    

Action Item 30:    Action Item 31:    

Expand rural child care  

Expand child care centers in rural areas to support 
young working families and to allow them to raise 
children in small communities. Research a business 
model for child care facility start-up. Identify com-
munities in need of child care services. Provide 
technical assistance to entrepreneurs. Identify 
potential financing and building sites. This action 
was estimated as moderately high in need and easy 
to implement.   

 
Strategies:   2.8, 4.5 
 
Timeframe:   Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:  Chambers of Commerce, families, 
employers, human resource agencies 
 
Resources:  Private financing, grants 
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Assess mental health services  

Assess need for mental health services.   Develop 
business plan for rural communities with high need. 
Use flexible and innovative approaches such as tele-
psychology for mental health consultations. Coordi-
nate with current mental health providers to identify 
potential collaboration. This action was estimated as 
high in need and difficult to implement.   

 

Strategies:   4.2, 4.5 
 
Timeframe:  Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:   Mental health providers, health care 
organizations, human resource organizations, county 
public health offices 
 
Resources:   Montana Department of Public Health 
and Human Services, patient fees, insurers, private 
foundation grants, state and federal grants 

Action Item 32:    

 

 

 

http://www.dphhs.mt.gov
http://www.dphhs.mt.gov
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Expand processing and shipping options for 
value-added pulse crops 

Create more facilities for value-added processing 
and shipping of pulse crops. Find producers and 
companies with expertise in pulse crops and develop 
relationships to support commercial ventures. 
Identify locations close to producers, reduce 
distance to market, and accommodate industrial 
facilities for value-added processing. Work with 
communities to provide infrastructure and incen-
tives for facilities. This action was estimated high in 
regional impact but could be difficult to implement.   

 
Strategies:   1.1, 1.9, 5.4  
 
Timeframe:  Long-term 
 
Stakeholders:   Agricultural producers, agricultural 
processing companies, economic development 
agencies 
 
Resources:   Montana Department of Agriculture 
programs, United States Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) programs and grants, Cooperative Extension, 
Economic Development Administration (EDA) grants, 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Public 
Facilities, Big Sky Trust planning funds 

Action Item 33:    Action Item 34:    

Clean up abandoned gas stations and other 
brownfield sites 

Promote brownfield program to assist landowners 
with assessment and clean-up of contaminated 
sites. Conduct outreach and education to dissem-
inate information on benefits of program and 
address concerns regarding liability issues. Identify 
re-use development potential for brownfield sites. 
Build on brownfield programs by Bear Paw Devel-
opment, Sweet Grass Development, and Great Falls 
Development.  Encourage growth policy updates to 
support brownfield cleanup. Develop grant appli-
cations for brownfield funds. This action was 
estimated as moderate in need and impact and easy 
to implement.  

 
Strategies:   2.7, 5.7  
 
Timeframe:  Underway, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:   Economic development agencies, 
land owners, realtors, local government 
 
Resources:   Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) grant programs, MT Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ), private business , 
Kansas State University’s  TAB (Technical Assistance 
to Brownfields Program)  

agr.mt.gov/
http://www.usda.gov/
http://www.msuextension.org/
http://www.eda.gov
http://www.hud.gov/cdbg
http://www.bstf.mt.gov
http://www.epa.gov
http://www.deq.mt.gov
http://www.deq.mt.gov
https://www.ksutab.org/about
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Create community scholarships 

Offer incentives such as student loan assistance to 
entice young adult workers back to rural areas, 
particularly to work in the agriculture sector. As agri-
cultural producers retire, there is a need to attract 
young adults to farming, health care, teaching, and 
other professional positions in small towns.   Com-
munities could start a scholarship or student loan 
repayment program and target the professions of 
highest need. Counties could pool resources for a 
collaborative program. This action was estimated as 
moderate in need and impact and moderately easy 
to implement.   

 
Strategies:   1.9, 2.8, 4.2, 5.8 
 
Timeframe:  Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:   Employers, families, young adults 
 
Resources:   AmeriCorps, employers, schools, 
Chambers of Commerce, donations, private 
foundations  

Develop small farms 

Provide technical assistance and support to encour-
age small farm development for non-commodity 
crops. Small farms could supplement other house-
hold income with fresh produce for sale in local 
markets. Small farmers could form a cooperative to 
market products. Work with agriculture community 
to identify potential tracts of land for small-scale 
farming. Work with MSU Extension and USDA to 
provide education on small farming opportunities. 
This action was estimated as moderate in impact and 
moderately easy to implement.   

 
Strategies:   1.1, 2.5, 5.1, 5.4, 5.5 
 
Timeframe:  Ongoing, long-term 
 
Stakeholders:   Agriculture producers and suppliers, 
rural communities, economic development agencies, 
young families 
 
Resources:   Montana Department of Agriculture, 
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), 
MSU Extension 

Action Item 35:    Action Item 36:    

 

http://www.nationalservice.gov/programs/americorps
http://www.agr.mt.gov
http://www.usda.gov/
http://www.msuextension.org/
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Develop additional oil seed processing facility 

Assess market and feasibility for expanded commer-
cial-scale oil seed crushing and processing.  Work 
with Bear Paw Development to build on research at 
MSU Northern Bioenergy Research Lab to construct 
biofuels plant(s) along the Hi-Line. Work with 
producers to expand oil seed crops (e.g. camelina 
and canola) for processing. Identify operator(s) and 
potential facility sites.   Research best practices to 
determine funding sources and markets for biofuels 
production.  Determine regional use for product, 
such as public transit and safety services. This action 
was estimated high in impact and difficult to imple-
ment. It has the potential to have a catalytic impact 
due to the high regional impact and benefits across 
multiple areas of focus.  

 

Strategies:   1.1, 1.7, 1.9, 3.3, 5.1, 5.4   
 
Timeframe:  Long-term 
 
Stakeholders:   Agricultural producers, economic 
development agencies, local government, transit 
systems  
 
Resources:   Montana State University-Northern 
BioEnergy Research Lab, Bear Paw Development 
Corporation, Montana Department of Agriculture, 
Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) Railway, United 
States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Economic 
Development Administration (EDA)  

Action Item 37:    Action Item 38:    

Determine economic impact of region’s 
natural areas 

The region has a number of premier natural areas, 
such as the Rocky Mountain Front, Upper Missouri 
Wild and Scenic River National Monument, and the 
proposed prairie reserve being developed by a non-
profit group. Protection of these areas has been 
contentious. It would benefit stakeholders to work 
together to determine how natural amenities act as 
an economic asset to the region. Conduct economic 
impact study to quantify the contribution of natural 
areas to the regional economy and determine how 
to best promote tourism and other conservation-
oriented jobs. This action was estimated as mod-
erate in impact and moderately easy to implement. 

 
Strategies:   1.3, 2.6, 5.2, 5.3, 5.8  
 
Timeframe:  Short-term 
 
Stakeholders:  Economic development agencies, 
public land agencies, environmental groups, 
Chambers of Commerce, land owners, local 
governments 
 
Resources:   Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG), Big Sky Trust planning grants, local match, 
private foundation grants, United States Forest 
Service (USFS), Bureau of Land Management (BLM)   

http://bioenergytestingcenter.com/
http://bioenergytestingcenter.com/
http://www.bearpaw.org
http://www.bearpaw.org
http://www.agr.mt.gov
http://www.bnsf.com/
http://www.usda.gov/
http://www.usda.gov/
http://www.eda.gov
http://www.eda.gov
http://www.hud.gov/cdbg
http://www.bstf.mt.gov
http://www.fs.fed.us
http://www.fs.fed.us
http://www.blm.gov/
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Build greenhouses for fresh produce all year  

Build greenhouse facilities to grow fresh produce 
year round. Research best practices, develop busi-
ness plan, and find investors and operators.  Market 
produce to local stores or through direct sales to 
customers. Work with programs that promote fresh 
produce and local foods. Coordinate this action with 
Action Item 35. This action was estimated as moder-
ate in impact and moderately easy to implement.    

 

Strategies:   1.1, 2.5, 5.5 
 
Timeframe:  Long-term, ongoing  
 
Stakeholders:   Agriculture, consumers, local 
markets, restaurants, school lunch programs, health 
care  
 
Resources:   United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA), Bountiful Baskets, farmers’ 
markets, public health grants  

Implement source water protection and 
Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) plans 

Work with local governments and watershed groups 
to conduct educational workshops on recommended 
best practices for source water protection and TMDL 
plans. Encourage local governments to incorporate 
recommendations from the plans into growth poli-
cies. Provide public information on non-point pollu-
tion and local measures of water quality. This action 
was estimated moderate in impact and need and 
moderately easy to implement.   

 
Strategies:   3.6, 3.8, 5.3, 5.6 
 
Timeframe:  Short-term, ongoing 
 
Stakeholders:   Public water drinking systems, local 
governments, watershed groups, consumers, 
planners 
 
Resources:   Montana Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ), Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA), Montana Rural Water 
Systems, Montana Watershed Coordination Council   

Action Item 39:    Action Item 40:    

 

http://www.usda.gov/
http://www.usda.gov/
http://www.bountifulbaskets.org/
http://www.deq.mt.gov
http://www.deq.mt.gov
http://www.epa.gov
http://www.mrws.org/
http://www.mrws.org/
http://www.mtwatersheds.org/
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Work with communities to certify flood 
control levees 

The Army Corp of Engineers no longer evaluates and 
certifies flood control levees. A number of commu-
nities in the region have aging levees and lack of 
certification makes it difficult to obtain flood insur-
ance. Identify communities impacted and document 
costs of conducting engineering studies and levee 
upgrades. Work with legislative representatives to 
seek federal and state funds for improvements. This 
strategy was estimated as moderate in impact and 
moderately difficult to implement. 

 
Strategies:  5.6   
 
Timeframe:  Long-term 
 
Stakeholders:   Local government, homeowners, 
levee districts, elected officials, engineers, economic 
development corporations  
 
Resources:   Federal Emergency Management 
Associates, legislators, property taxes from levee 
districts 

Action Item 41:    Action Item 42:   

Support regional water projects  

Support regional water projects such as the Saint 
Mary Canal Working Group and the North Central 
Montana Regional Water System. Participate in 
working groups and tasks forces, and write letters of 
support as needed. Conduct outreach in local 
communities to generate awareness of projects and 
build support. Encourage municipal, county, and 
tribal governments impacted by projects to incor-
porate recommendations into growth policies. This 
action was estimated high in impact and moderately 
difficult to implement.      

 
Strategies:   3.6, 3.9, 5.1, 5.4 
 
Timeframe:  Ongoing, underway 
 
Stakeholders:   Irrigators, drinking water systems, 
local government, Rocky Boy Reservation, Blackfeet 
Reservation, Bureau of Land Management 
 
Resources:   Montana Department of Natural 
Resources and Conservation (DNRC), Montana 
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), 
Congressional Delegation, Tribes      

http://www.fema.gov
http://www.fema.gov
http://www.dnrc.mt.gov
http://www.dnrc.mt.gov
http://www.deq.mt.gov
http://www.deq.mt.gov
http://mt.gov/govt/congressional_delegation.mcpx
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Strength 

Good: 
Continue 

to    
Improve 

Caution:  
Needs 

Improve-
ment 

Regional 
Weakness:  

Needs 
Attention 

Regional Prosperity 

Employment growth over last 10 years compared to state average1

Business establishment growth compared to state average1

Lodging Tax growth compared to regional average2

Unemployment rate compared to state average3

Growth in jobs in the professional/technical and health care sectors1

Growth policies in the county have information on downtown and policies 
to support main street4

County ranking for percent of homes with broadband download speeds 
greater than 25mbps5

Number of renewable energy projects in county6 

Community Vitality 

Percent of housing stock rated as poor or fair condition compared to state 
average7

Percent of owner-occupied vs. renter-occupied housing units compared to 
state average8

Number of residential units accessible to persons with disabilities, or 
demonstrating universal design for future adaptations, funded with 
housing tax credits9

Policies supporting equitable access for persons with disabilities included 
in growth policies4

Denial rate for mortgage loan applications from Native American 
applicants compared to state average10

Number of rent-subsidized housing units (Section 8 or NAHASDA units) 
available to low income residents11

Number of Historic Districts and listings on the National Historic Register12

Growth policies with goals and objectives related to community character4 

Growth policies that include both an inventory of parks and policies 
regarding parks4

http://vibrantfuturesmt.org/document/baseline-indicator-data


105 

Strength 

Good: 
Continue 

to    
Improve 

Caution:  
Needs 

Improve-
ment 

Regional 
Weakness:  

Needs 
Attention 

Physical Systems 

Trends in highway crash data13 

Trends in transit ridership14

Trends in number of public water systems reporting contamination or 
monitoring/testing15

Percent of wastewater projects in the county that successfully applied for 
grants for upgrades16

Inventory/map of existing and proposed trail systems included in growth 
policies4

Decrease in percentage of people who drove to work alone17

Social Systems 

No Child Left Behind - # of schools in county that made adequate yearly 
progress18

Percent of  high school graduates continuing on to post-secondary 
education compared to state rate19

County classification as “Health Care Professional Shortage Area”20

Per capita licensed adult day care beds for 65+ population21

Local growth policies have information on youth trends and policies to 
address needs for this population4

Obesity rates compared to statewide average22

Percent of all adults reporting their general health status as “fair” or 
“poor”23 

County has adopted or updated a Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan in the last 
five years

Natural Assets 

Number of water bodies covered by a TMDL or watershed planning 
group24,25

Amount of direct sales of agricultural products to consumers in the 
county26 

Number of acres in organic crops27

Number of farms with produced and sold value-added commodities 
compared to statewide rankings28

Number of local governments participating in FEMA Community Rating 
System program29

Number of census tracts classified as food deserts30
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http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/30000.html
http://tourism.mt.gov/
http://www.ourfactsyourfuture.org
http://www.vibrantfuturesmt.org/sites/default/files/user/documents/Growth%20Policy%20Review%20-%20Final%202-6-13.pdf
http://www.broadbandmap.gov/analyze
http://www.eia.gov/state/maps.cfm?v=Renewable%20Energy%20Power%20Plants
http://housing.mt.gov/CommunityPartners/Data
http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/searchresults.xhtml?refresh=t
http://housing.mt.gov/About/MF/htcprojectsawarded.mcpx
http://housing.mt.gov/About/MF/htcprojectsawarded.mcpx
http://www.consumerfinance.gov/hmda/explore#filters
http://www.consumerfinance.gov/hmda/explore#filters
http://housing.mt.gov/CommunityPartners/TribalHousing
http://www.nps.gov/history/nr/
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/publications/datastats/crashdata.shtml
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/publications/docs/brochures/factbook.pdf
http://sdwisdww.mt.gov:8080/DWW/
http://sdwisdww.mt.gov:8080/DWW/
http://www.deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/srf/WPCSRF/default.mcpx
http://www.deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/srf/WPCSRF/default.mcpx
http://ceic.mt.gov/Census/ACS.aspx
http://opi.mt.gov/Reports&Data/Index.html?gpm=1_3
http://opi.mt.gov/Reports&Data/index.html?gpm=1_9
http://opi.mt.gov/Reports&Data/index.html?gpm=1_9
http://dphhs.mt.gov/publichealth/epidemiology/communityhealthdata
http://dphhs.mt.gov/publichealth/epidemiology/communityhealthdata
http://www.dphhs.mt.gov/.../healthcarefacilitieslist/adultdaycarecenters.pdf
http://www.dphhs.mt.gov/.../healthcarefacilitieslist/adultdaycarecenters.pdf
http://dphhs.mt.gov/publichealth/epidemiology/communityhealthdata
http://dphhs.mt.gov/publichealth/epidemiology/communityhealthdata
http://dphhs.mt.gov/publichealth/epidemiology/communityhealthdata
http://dphhs.mt.gov/publichealth/epidemiology/communityhealthdata
http://www.deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/TMDL/default.mcpx
http://www.deq.mt.gov/wqinfo/TMDL/default.mcpx
http://www.mtwatersheds.org/
http://www.agcensus.usda.gov/Publications/2012/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_2_County_Level/Montana/st30_2_043_043.pdf
http://www.agcensus.usda.gov/Publications/2012/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_2_County_Level/Montana/
http://www.agcensus.usda.gov/Publications/2012/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_2_County_Level/Montana/st30_2_043_043.pdf
http://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/15846
http://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/15846
http://www.ers.usda.gov/data/fooddesert
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Acronyms and Abbreviations 
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Acronyms and Abbreviations 

Sweetgrass Development Community 

Meetings 

Social and Economic Development 

Strategies 

Scenario Planning Workshop 

Total Maximum Daily Load 

United States Census Bureau 

 United States Department of 

Agriculture 

United States Forest Service 

United States Geological Survey 

Vibrant Futures 

Wildland-Urban Interface 

World War 1 
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SCENARIO WORKSHOPS 

Date County or Reservation Location Participants 

03.13.13 Glacier  Cut Bank 13 

03.14.13 Pondera  Conrad 10 

03.15.13 Cascade  Great Falls 26 

03.18.13 Hill  Havre 20 

03.19.13 Fort Belknap Reservation Fort Belknap Agency 12 

03.20.13 Phillips  Malta 7 

TOTAL PARTICIPANTS 88 
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United States, 2010
Total population 308,745, 538

  Under 5 years

  10 to 14 years

  20 to 24 years

  30 to 34 years

  40 to 44 years

  50 to 54 years

  60 to 64 years

  70 to 74 years

  80 to 84 years

  90 years and over

Montana, 2010
Total population 989, 415

  Under 5 years

  10 to 14 years

  20 to 24 years

  30 to 34 years

  40 to 44 years

  50 to 54 years

  60 to 64 years

  70 to 74 years

  80 to 84 years

  90 years and over

 

Chinook, 2010
Total population 1386
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Under 5 years

10 to 14 years

20 to 24 years
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40 to 44 years

50 to 54 years

60 to 64 years

70 to 74 years

80 to 84 years

90 years and over

Harlem, 2010
Total population 808
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  Under 5 years

  10 to 14 years
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  40 to 44 years

  50 to 54 years

  60 to 64 years

  70 to 74 years
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  90 years and over
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Browning, 2010
Total population 1016

-$60 -$40 -$20 $0 $20 $40 $60

  Under 5 years

  10 to 14 years

  20 to 24 years

  30 to 34 years

  40 to 44 years

  50 to 54 years

  60 to 64 years

  70 to 74 years

  80 to 84 years

  90 years and over

Babb, 2010
Total population 174

15 10 5 0 5 10 15

  Under 5 years

  5 to 9 years

  10 to 14 years

  15 to 19 years

  20 to 24 years

  25 to 29 years

  30 to 34 years

  35 to 39 years

  40 to 44 years

  45 to 49 years

  50 to 54 years

  55 to 59 years

  60 to 64 years

  65 to 69 years

  70 to 74 years

  75 to 79 years

  80 to 84 years

  85 to 89 years

  90 years and over

Heart Butte, 2010
Total population 582
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  Under 5 years

  10 to 14 years
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  50 to 54 years

  60 to 64 years
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Belt, 2010
Total population 597
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  Under 5 years
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  20 to 24 years
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  60 to 64 years

  70 to 74 years

  80 to 84 years

  90 years and over

Great Falls, 2010
Total population 58505

  Under 5 years

  10 to 14 years

  20 to 24 years

  30 to 34 years

  40 to 44 years

  50 to 54 years

  60 to 64 years

  70 to 74 years

  80 to 84 years

  90 years and over

Vaughn, 2010
Total population 658
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Big Sandy, 2010
Total population 598 
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Under 5 years
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Boneau, 2010
Total population 380
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Fort Benton, 2010 
Total population 1,464 
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Geraldine, 2010
Total population 261
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  Under 5 years
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Fort Belknap Agency, 2010
Total population 1,293
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Hays-Lodge Pole, 2010
Total population 1100
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Gildford, 2010
Total population 179

15 10 5 0 5 10

  Under 5 years

  10 to 14 years
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  90 years and over

Havre, 2010
Total population 9310
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Hingham, 2010
Total population 118
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Kremlin, 2010
Total population 98
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Cut Bank, 2010
Total population 2869
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East Glacier, 2010
Total population 363
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Stanford, 2010
Total population 401
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Hobson, 2010
Total population 215
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Dodson, 2010
Total population 124
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Malta, 2010
Total population 1997
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Saco, 2010
Total population 197
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Chester, 2010
Total population 847
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Rocky Boy Agency, 2010
Total population 355
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Box Elder, 2010
Total population 87
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Whitewater, 2010
Total population 64
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Zortman, 2010
Total population 69
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Conrad, 2010
Total population 2570
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Valier-Dupuyer, 2010
Total population 1539
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Choteau, 2010
Total population 1684
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Dutton, 2010
Total population 316
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Fairfield, 2010
Total population 708
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Kevin, 2010
Total population 154
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Shelby, 2010
Total population 3376
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Sunburst, 2010
Total population 375
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Excel files of each data set are available by clicking the title.
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http://www.vibrantfuturesmt.org
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